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I. RECOMMENDATION 
An investigation was conducted into whether from 1988 

through 1993 Vincent Trerotola breached his fiduciary duties and 
embezzled and converted to his use money he caused Locals 72 and 
858 to pay him beyond his salary without disclosure to the members 
and approval of the Locals' boards. Because of the evidence 
summarized below, the Independent Review Board recommends a charge 
be filed for this conduct. In addition, also investigated was 
whether Trerotola embezzled from several IBT entities, including 
the locals, money received from each of the entities for 
reimbursement to him of his payment through withholding from his 
salary of his employee's share of the FICA tax paid on his salaries 
from these entities, at a time when he knew the IBT paid his full 
FICA obligations in those years. It was determined that Trerotola 
did not disclose to any of these entities that the IBT fully paid 
his FICA obligations. Thus, he accepted multiple payments for the 
same expense. For 1988, 1989 and 1990, Joint Council 16, the 
Eastern Conference, and Locals 72 and 858 each reimbursed Trerotola 
for his employee's share of the FICA tax even though the IBT had 
paid his FICA obligations. Moreover, in 1991 and 1993 Trerotola 
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may have also embezzled and converted to his own use FICA and 
Medicare reimbursements he caused Local 858 to pay to himself 
because Local 72, Joint Council 16 and the Eastern Conference also 
reimbursed Trerotola for his FICA obligations in those years. In 
1992, Trerotola appears to have embezzled funds from the Eastern 
Conference because he failed to disclose to that entity that Local 
72 was reimbursing him for his FICA obligations. As a result, in 
every year since 1988 Trerotola received reimbursement from IBT 
entities for his FICA obligation in excess of the amounts necessary 
to satisfy the obligation. 

Because the allegations involve intertwined wrongdoing at 
the Local, Joint Council and Conference levels, the filing of 
charges is being recommended to the General President. 

II. INTRODUCTION 
From 1972 until August 1990, when former General 

President William McCarthy fired him, Trerotola was a salaried 
International Representative. (Ex. 1 at 10) During this period, 
the International paid his and every other International employee's 
share of the FICA tax. Trerotola was also the salaried 
Administrative Assistant to the Chairman of the Eastern Conference 
from 1971 until December 1993 when he resigned. (Ex. 2 at 24) In 
addition, he was also the salaried Office Manager for Joint Council 
16 in New York from 1969 until late Spring 1993 when he was fired.1 

1 His father, Joseph Trerotola, was head of the Eastern 
Conference from 1969 to October 1990 and head of Joint Council 16 
from 1966 until 1991 when he resigned as part of a settlement of 
the Investigations Officer's charges against him. (Ex. 5 at 6, 11) 
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Both the Eastern Conference and Joint Council 16 reimbursed 
Trerotola for his employee FICA payments withheld and forwarded to 
the government on his behalf despite the International having fully 
satisfied Trerotola's obligation for that tax. The excess withheld 
FICA was available to him for a dollar per dollar set-off against 
his income tax liabilities. In essence, the government returned 
this money to him. There was no expense to reimburse. 

While holding the International, Eastern Conference and 
Joint Council 16 positions, Trerotola simultaneously was the 
Secretary-Treasurer of Local 72. He has headed that Local from its 
inception in 1979 to the present. (Ex. 1 at 4) From approximately 
1981 to the present, Trerotola also has been the Local 858 
Secretary-Treasurer. (Ex. 1 at 19) Trerotola received a salary 
from each Local. During the years 1988 through 1990, Trerotola 
awarded himself from each Local .annual reimbursement of his 
employee's share of FICA.2 During the years 1991 through 1993, 
Trerotola received a check from each Local for the amount of his 
employee's share of FICA with the notation "bonus" or "gratuity" on 
the check.3 These payments, whether considered FICA reimbursements 
or bonuses, were made without disclosure to the members or approval 
by the boards.4 

2 The other members of both Local's Executive Boards also 
received reimbursement for the FICA withheld from their salaries. 

3 It appears that in 1992 Local 858 did not issue FICA 
reimbursement or bonus checks to any Local 858 officer, including 
Trerotola. 

4 As discussed below, in 1991, 1992 and 1993, the Local 72 
Executive Board discussed Christmas bonuses. 
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Based upon investigation, it appears that Trerotola may 
have embezzled monies from Locals 72 and 858 in 1988, 1989 and 1990 
for two reasons: First, knowing that the IBT fully paid the 
employee's share of FICA taxes on his behalf, he had the Locals 
reimburse him for an obligation, his employee's share of FICA, that 
another IBT entity, the International, had fully paid and which 
excess withholding was available to him as dollar per dollar set-
off against his tax liability.5 Second, as discussed below, even 
if these payments were considered to be bonuses and not FICA 
reimbursement, the evidence shows that Trerotola brought reproach 
upon the IBT and embezzled Local money by engaging in undisclosed 
and, in the absence of bylaws and a board vote, unapproved self-
enrichment at the expense of the members to whom he owed a 
fiduciary duty. In Local 858 this reason also existed in later 
years.6 Trerotola's conduct in Local 858 was particularly 
egregious because in 1987 the Executive Board and the members voted 
that his salary should be equivalent to that of an. OTB General 
Branch Manager. Nevertheless, each year Trerotola awarded himself 
additional compensation above his salary without disclosure to the 
members or approval by the Executive Board. 

For the other two entities, the Joint Council and the 
Eastern Conference, it appears Trerotola embezzled funds through 

5 In addition, as noted above, for those same years, while 
he knew that the IBT fully paid his employee's share of FICA taxes, 
Trerotola also received FICA reimbursement from Joint Council 16 
and the Eastern Conference. 

6 As discussed below, in 1991, 1992 and 1993 the Local 72 
Executive Board discussed the distribution of Christmas bonuses, 
and, in 1992 Local 72 Bylaws were approved by the IBT General 
President. 
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double dipping because the money withheld for his FICA obligation 
for which he was being reimbursed by both of these entities was his 
already, available as a personal tax credit, because the obligation 
had been paid by some other IBT entity in the applicable years. As 
a consequence, it appears that from 1988 through 1993 Trerotola 
breached his fiduciary duties to IBT members, brought reproach upon 
the IBT and embezzled and converted to his own use union funds 
thereby violating Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 
7(b)(1), (2) and (3) of the IBT Constitution. 

Trerotola7s defense to the double dipping allegation is 
that the year-end payments from all the entities were bonuses and 
not FICA reimbursement. He claims that FICA withholding was used 
to measure the bonuses. As to the charge of causing the locals to 
make unauthorized and undisclosed payments to himself, Trerotola's 
defense appears to be he lacked the intent to embezzle and that, 
since they were also receiving bonuses, the other board members 
implicitly approved it. 

III. INVESTIGATIVE FINDINGS 
A. TREROTOLA'S FICA AND MEDICARE OBLIGATIONS 

FICA is a federal tax imposed on individuals and their 
employers. For the years 1988, 1989 and 1990, the maximum FICA and 
Medicare tax paid by an employee was $3,379.50, $3,604.80 and 
$3,924.45 respectively. For those years, the FICA and Medicare 
maximum was reached when an individual earned an annual salary of 
$45,000, $48,000 and $51,300 respectively. There was no FICA or 
Medicare tax imposed upon salaries above those points for those 
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years. (Ex. 3) It was the IBT's policy during the years in 
question to pay the FICA taxes in full for all IBT employees. (Ex. 
130) 

For the years 1991, 1992 and 1993, the maximum FICA tax 
paid by an employee was $3,310.80, $3,441.00 and $3,571.20 
respectively. For those years, the FICA maximum was reached when 
an individual earned an annual salary of $53,400, $55,500 and 
$57,600 respectively. There was no FICA tax imposed upon salaries 
above those points for those years. (Ex. 4) 

In 1991, the government changed the formula used to 
calculate Medicare tax. For the years 1991, 1992 and 1993, the 
maximum Medicare tax paid by an employee required by law was 
$1,812.50, $1,887.90 and $1,957.50 respectively. This Medicare 
maximum was reached when an individual earned an annual salary of 
$125,000, $130,200 and $135,000 respectively. There was no 
Medicare imposed upon salaries above those points for those years. 
(Ex. 4) 

In the years 1988, 1989 and until August in 1990, 
Trerotola worked for the IBT as an International Representative. 
His International salary for these years was $67,776.77, $69,512.59 
and $48,346.60, respectively. (Exs. 93, 94 and 95) In each of 
these years, the IBT, as was its practice for all employees, paid 
Trerotola's FICA obligations in addition to his salary and other 
allowances. The IBT had paid his FICA obligations in this manner 
since 1972, when he was first employed as an International 
Representative. (Ex. 1 at 10) Trerotola admitted that he knew the 
IBT paid both the employer's share of the FICA and his share of the 
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FICA. (Ex. 1 at 24-25) As discussed below, he never disclosed this 
payment to any of the other IBT entities for which he worked. 

For the years 1988, 1989 and 1990, the IBT paid FICA and 
Medicare obligations on Trerotola's behalf of $3,379.50, $3,604.80 
and $3,419.04, respectively. (Exs. 93, 94 and 95) This was the 
maximum FICA and Medicare obligation due from any individual in the 
years 1988 and 1989. Trerotola was discharged as an International 
Representative in August 1990 and at that point the IBT had not 
paid the maximum FICA and Medicare obligation reguired for that 
year. After the IBT payment, Trerotola would have owed an 
additional $505.41 in FICA and Medicare tax for 1990. 

TAX CREDITS FOR EXCESS FICA PAYMENTS 
The law required that if an employee received salaries 

from multiple entities, FICA and Medicare withholding must have 
been withheld and forwarded to the government as if each entity's 
salary (for Trerotola, five different Teamster salaries) was the 
only salary received. See. 26 U.S.C. §§ 3101, 3102 and 3111. If 
at the end of the tax year the employee had overpaid his FICA and 
Medicare obligations, then he was entitled to a tax credit for the 
excess amount against his income tax owed. Thus, the excess FICA 
withholding would reduce his personal tax liability. 



B. LOCAL 72 
Local 72 has approximately 2,500 to 2,600 members. The 

Local's members are New York State Thruway toll collectors, 
maintenance and clerical workers. (Ex. 1 at 5) Local 72 has only 
one contract, that with the New York State Thruway. The offices of 
this Local are at 265 West 14th Street, Room 704, New York City. 
(Ex. 1 at 16-17). Trerotola has been the Secretary Treasurer of 
Local 72 since 1979.7 During this period, he also always held 
other Teamster positions simultaneously. 

Local 72 had no Bylaws from 1979 until November 1992 when 
the International approved Bylaws. (Ex. 6, Ex. 2 at 34; Ex. 129)8 

Local 72 is a public service local and, as such, does not file Form 
LM-2 reports with the Department of Labor detailing, among other 
things, officers' compensation. The Local 72 membership meeting 
minutes stated that the Local's financial reports were read at 
these meetings. (Exs. 7-12)9 The financial reports, which the 
Local's outside accountants prepared, did not list the salaries 

7 Local 72 paid Trerotola $73,744.10 in 1993, $73,478.00 in 
1992, $70,693.89 in 1991, $63,144.47 in 1990, $64,234.80 in 1989 
and $60,760.04 in 1988. (Exs. 20, 22, 24, 26, 28 and 30) 

8 Article XXII, Section 1 of the IBT Constitution mandates 
that each local union must adopt Bylaws which do not conflict with 
the IBT Constitution. 

These minutes also reflected that the Executive Board 
meeting minutes were read at the general membership meetings. 
However, the Executive Board minutes did not contain a statement of 
the salary for Trerotola. The Executive Board minutes for February 
13, 1991 reflected that the Executive Board set the monthly salary 
for Local 72 President Susan Girolamo at $2300 and decided that 
Trerotola, the Local's Secretary Treasurer, would receive a $400 
month salary increase retroactive to July 1990. (Ex. 34(A)) 
However, these minutes, which were read to the membership, did not 
state Trerotola's salary. (Exs. 34(A) and 10 (A-D)) 
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for the individual officers and staff. (Exs. 13-18) As a result, 
there was no disclosure through the Local to the members in any 
year of either Trerotola's salary or bonus. 

Trerotola testified that in approximately 1989 he made 
the decision to pay local employees, including himself, their share 
of FICA. (Ex. 1 at 28)10 Trerotola did not discuss this decision 
with the other members of the Executive Board. (Ex. 1 at 28-29) 
The other members of the Local 72 Executive Board, testified that 
Trerotola alone made the decision to give the FICA as a Christmas 
gift to the paid employees. They also stated that the Executive 
Board did not discuss this issue. (Ex. 37 at 24-27 and 40-41; Ex. 
38 at 18-21 and 27-29; Ex. 39 at 20-23 and 30-32 and 37 & 38 and 41 
& 42; Ex. 40 at 12-16 and 20-21 and Ex. 41 at 9 and 14-16). 

The Executive Board had always voted on Trerotola's 
salary and increases. (See Exs. 131-134) Trerotola had no power to 
and there was no practice of his unilaterally setting his salary 
without board approval. However, the additional year-end payments 
whether a bonus or FICA reimbursement was outside this practice. 
This exclusion from board approval of these increases to 
Trerotola's compensation is evidence of intent to embezzle. 

Moreover, Trerotola did not disclose to the Local's 
members or to the Board that the International already paid his 
FICA obligations. (Ex. 1 at 30) Trerotola acknowledged that the 
Local 72 Executive Board members would not have had any way of 
knowing that the International was paying his share of FICA as part 

10 The Local's records reflected that the FICA reimbursements 
began in approximately 1988. (Ex. 19) 
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of his International salary. (Ex. 1 at 31) Moreover, he did not 
reveal that the Eastern Conference, Joint Council 16 and Local 858 
were also paying back to him, allegedly as a Christmas bonus, the 
amount he had paid in FICA.11 Trerotola acknowledged that the 
other Local 72 officers did not know that the other IBT entities 
were giving him, as he contends, a Christmas gift in the amount of 
his FICA contribution at the end of each year. (Ex. 1 at 28-32 and 
Ex. 2 at 10-12)12 Consequently, Trerotola did not explain that 
these excess payments above the FICA obligation were not 
reimbursing him for any loss because the excess withholding could 
be used by him to offset his personal income tax obligations. 

During December of the years 1988, 1989 and 1990 when the 
International was paying Trerotola's employee share of FICA and 
Medicare, Trerotola caused Local 72 to give to him individual 
checks apart from his salary in the gross amount of $4,360.04, 
$3,604.80 and $3,924.47 respectively. (Exs. 19, 21 and 23)13 The 

11 As discussed below, for the years 1988, 1989 and 1990, 
Local 858 described the payments as reimbursed social security tax. 

12 Through his counsel, Trerotola suggested that because the 
fact he was receiving multiple salaries was well publicized, as a 
consequence that he was receiving multiple FICA reimbursements must 
also be considered disclosed. (Ex. 135) The newspaper and other 
published disclosures on which counsel relies do not address the 
issues of multiple FICA reimbursements and do not disclose those 
payments. Consequently, it cannot be inferred from these articles 
that multiple FICA payments were known to the readers of the 
material, let alone the majority of IBT members. 

13 In 1988, 1989 and 1990, the other Local 72 Executive Board 
members, including the part-time officers, also received checks 
with the notation "reimbursed s.s. tax". For these years, the 
amount of the checks was approximately equivalent to the FICA 
withheld from their salaries. (Exs. 101-103) A schedule of the 
FICA reimbursements for the other officers of the Local is annexed 
as Exhibit 104. 
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explanatory notation on each of the check vouchers was "reimbursed 
s. s. tax." (Exs. 19, 21 and 23)14 

The Local 72 Executive Board minutes and general 
membership minutes for the years 1988, 1989 and 1990 contained no 
statement that the officers and employees were being reimbursed 
their FICA tax or being paid bonuses. (Exs. 7-9, 31-33) Moreover, 
as noted, Trerotola's salary, benefits and bonuses were not 
disclosed to the Local's members. An officer's award of an 
undisclosed payment to himself without proper authority is an 
embezzlement as well as a gross breach of fiduciary duty. In the 
years 1988, 1989 and 1990 Trerotola, a part-time employee of the 
Local, awarded himself a total of $11,889.31 as FICA reimbursement 
without (1) any disclosure to the members of the payments, (2) 
advising the Executive Board that he was already receiving full 
FICA reimbursement from the IBT as well as additional FICA 
reimbursement from Local 858, Joint Council 16 and the Eastern 
Conference or (3) any Executive Board vote. Trerotola, in a local 
without Bylaws, had no authority to enrich himself with the 
members' money beyond his salary. 

During December of 1991, 1992 and 1993 in addition to 
salary the Local gave Trerotola checks in the gross amount of 

In a form letter which apparently accompanied the 1988 
checks to the Local 72 officers, Trerotola wrote "Happy Holidays 
and may the enclosed check, which represents a refund of your 1988 
Social Security Taxes, make it even merrier." (Ex. 118) A similar 
form letter accompanied the 1989 and 1990 checks. (Exs. 119 and 
120) 

14 In 1989 and 1990, the amounts of these checks approximately 
equalled the maximum FICA and Medicare contributions for 1989 and 
1990 which were $3,604.80 and $3,924.45 for the respective years. 
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$4,273.89, $4,488.22 and $4,621.98, respectively. (Exs. 25, 27 and 
29)15 These checks were for the approximate amount of FICA and 
Medicare taxes Local 72 withheld on behalf of Trerotola for the 
respective years.16 For these years, the notation on the check 
vouchers was "Xmas bonus" or "Christmas gratuity." (Exs. 25, 27 and 
29)17 

Since the amount of these checks closely corresponded to 
the FICA and Medicare tax withheld on behalf of Trerotola, it seems 
apparent that the intent was to continue to reimburse Trerotola for 

15 In 1991, 1992 and 1993, the other Local 72 Executive Board 
members also received checks with the notations "Xmas bonus" or 
"Christmas gratuity." The payments in these years were 
approximately egual to the FICA that had been withheld on behalf of 
each officer. (Exs. 105-107) A schedule of the FICA payments for 
the other Local 72 officers is annexed as Exhibit 104. 

16 In 1991 Local 72 withheld $4,335.86 from Trerotola's salary 
and the gross amount of the check issued to Trerotola was 
$4,273.89. The difference between the FICA withholding and the 
check issued to Trerotola was $61.97. In 1992 Local 72 withheld 
$4,506.42 from Trerotola's salary and the gross amount of the check 
issued to Trerotola was $4,488.22. The difference between the 
withholding and the check issued to Trerotola was $18.20. In 1993 
Local 72 withheld $4,640.48 from Trerotola's salary and the gross 
amount of the check issued to Trerotola was $4,621.98. The 
difference between the withholding and the check issued to 
Trerotola was $18.50. 

17 On February 20, 1990 the Investigations Officer ("10") 
filed charges against George Vitale ("Vitale"). (Ex. 42) Charge 
One stated that Vitale had embezzled approximately $10,116 from 
Local 283 by converting to his own use the FICA contributions paid 
on his behalf by the Local, when he knew that his FICA taxes were 
at the same time paid in full on his behalf by the IBT. This 
charge was published in the April 1990 issue of the Teamster 
magazine. (Ex. 96) On December 18, 1990 the Independent 
Administrator ("IA") found Vitale had converted the Local's funds 
for his personal benefit. The IA suspended Vitale for five years. 
(Ex. 43) The IA's decision was reported in the February 1991 issue 
of the Teamster magazine. (Ex. 97) On June 6, 1991 the IA's 
decision was affirmed by District Judge Edelstein. Judge 
Edelstein's opinion was published in its entirety in the December 
1991 issue of the Teamster magazine. (Ex. 98) 



the FICA and Medicare the local withheld on his behalf.18 

Moreover, from the timing of the change which was the first such 
payment after the Independent Administrator's Vitale decision was 
published in the Teamster magazine, it appears the change in the 
description of the payments was an attempt to conceal the 
continuation of the practice of FICA reimbursement.19 

In November 1992 the IBT approved Local 72's Bylaws. 
(Exs. 6 and 129)20 Executive Board minutes for the years 1991, 
1992 and 1993 reported that a motion was made and passed that the 
Local would distribute Christmas gifts as in the past years. 
(Exs. 34(D), 35(D) and 36(D)) Each of these minutes was read at 
one of the Local's general membership meetings. (Exs. 10, 11 and 
12) However, neither to whom the gifts were to be given nor the 
amount of the Christmas gifts either in total or per individual was 
specified in the minutes. (Exs. 34(D>, 35(D), 36(D), 10, 11 and 12) 
Nor did the minutes reflect that the members were informed of what 

18 Moreover, the checks with the changed notation were issued 
after the Executive Board members and Trerotola had been guestioned 
in April 1991 concerning the Local's reimbursement of Trerotola for 
his FICA tax payments in earlier years. (Exs. 37-41) 

19 Indeed, the form letter which apparently accompanied the 
1991 checks to the Local 72 officers contained the same statement 
regarding the refund of social security taxes found in the letters 
distributed in the years 1988, 1989 and 1990. In the 1991 letter, 
Trerotola wrote "Happy Holidays and may the enclosed check, which 
represents a refund of your 1991 Social Security Taxes, make it 
even merrier." (emphasis added) (Ex. 121) A similar form letter 
accompanied the 1992 and 1993 checks. (Exs. 122 and 123) Of 
course, since the government would refund Trerotola's social 
security tax payments the Local withheld through the form of a tax 
credit, this was no "refund" for Trerotola but just an additional 
taking. 

20 Pursuant to Section 14(E) of the Local 72 Bylaws approved 
in November 1992, the Executive Board has the authority to set the 
salaries of the officers. (Ex. 6) 
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had been the Local's past practice regarding Christmas gifts. (Exs. 
10, 11 and 12) 

C. LOCAL 858 
Locals 72 and 858 share the same office space and the 

same two clerical employees work for both locals. (Ex. 2 at 4 & 6; 
Ex. 1 at 16-17) Off Track Betting ("0TB") managers in New York 
City and OTB managers, betting clerks, clerical and maintenance 
workers in Nassau County, New York comprised the members of Local 
858. (Ex. 1 at 9 & 19, Ex. 2 at 5) There are approximately 600 
members in the Local. (Ex. 2 at 5) The Local has only two 
contracts, one with OTB in New York City and one with OTB in Nassau 
County. (Ex. 2 at 6) Trerotola testified that he organized the New 
York City OTB managers and then the OTB members in Nassau County. 
(Ex. 1 at 9) 

Since approximately 1981, Trerotola has been the 
Secretary Treasurer of Local 858.21 This has always been a part-
time position for Trerotola, who has occupied at least one other 
salaried position with another Teamster entity during the time he 
has been a Local 858 officer.22 

Like Local 72, Local 858 is a public service local that 
does not have to file Forms LM-2 with the Department of Labor. The 
membership meeting minutes reflected that the annual financial 

21 In 1980, Trerotola was the start-up Trustee for Local 858. 
(Ex. 1 at 8 & 19) In 1981, Local 858 was released from Trusteeship 
and Trerotola became the Secretary Treasurer. 

22 Local 858 paid Trerotola $53,235.44 in 1993, $49,185,00 in 
1992, $54,046.39 in 1991, $51,430.12 in 1990, $50,131.53 in 1989 
and $48,439.07 in 1988. (Exs. 62, 64, 66, 68 and 70) 
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reports were read at one of these meetings. (Exs. 44-49) The 
financial reports, which the Local's outside accountants prepared, 
did not reveal the individual salaries of the officers and staff. 
(Exs. 50-54). 

On January 7, 1981, the then IBT General President 
authorized the release of Local 858 from Trusteeship and the 
installation of newly elected officers. Trerotola was elected 
Secretary-Treasurer, the principal executive officer of the Local. 
From its inception through 1993, neither the Local 858 members nor 
the IBT had approved Bylaws for the Local. Therefore, in violation 
of Article XXII, Section 1 of the IBT Constitution, Trerotola ran 
the Local without Bylaws.23 

At an Executive Board meeting on September 10, 1987 a 
resolution was passed to increase Trerotola's salary to that of an 
OTB General Branch Manager. (Ex. 108) According to the minutes of 
the September 10, 1987 membership meeting, the membership also 
passed a resolution that Trerotola's salary would be equal to that 
of an OTB General Branch Manager. (Ex. 109) Trerotola testified 
that his salary was the same as an OTB Branch Manager's salary. 
(Ex. 1 at 9) Indeed, from the Local's beginning the Executive 
Board set Trerotola's compensation. (Exs. 136-139) 

Trerotola stated that he instituted the policy of giving 
a Christmas gift to the secretaries of the Local in the amount of 
their FICA contribution early in Local 858's existence. For the 
Executive Board members, including himself, he instituted the 

23 On or about September 7, 1994, Local 858 submitted Bylaws 
to the IBT for approval. 
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policy in 1989 or 1990. (Ex. 1 at 32-34)24 The Local 858 Executive 
Board meeting minutes and membership minutes did not reflect any 
mention of FICA reimbursement or bonuses for the Local's officers. 
As a result, it appears that Trerotola without authority increased 
his compensation which had been set by the membership and Executive 
Board by awarding himself FICA reimbursement for an amount the 
government would reimburse him through a tax credit. Trerotola did 
not disclose to the members that he had awarded himself the FICA 
reimbursement. Moreover, Trerotola did not disclose to the Local's 
Executive Board or members that the IBT was fully paying his FICA 
obligation in 1988, 1989 and most of 1990 and that he would receive 
the money the Local withheld back as a tax credit. Thus, the 
description of it to Trerotola as reimbursed was false. 

During December of the years 1988, 1989 and 1990 Local 
858 gave Trerotola checks in addition to salary, checks in the 
gross amount of $3,567.81, $3,745.23 and $3,913.12, respectively. 
For each of these years, the notation on the vouchers for these 
checks was "reimb. s. s.", "reimb. s.s. taxes" and "reimb. s.s. 
tax," respectively. (Exs. 61, 63 and 65) Trerotola testified that 
there was no Executive Board discussion of the 1990 payment and the 
Executive Board did not vote on the payment. (Ex. 1 at 34) 
Trerotola testified that he alone made the decision to make the 
payment. (Ex. 1 at 34) The minutes for each of these years 

24 Trerotola claimed that Local 858's accountant suggested the 
employee's share of FICA as the amount of the bonuses to be 
awarded. (Ex. 1 at 33) It appears that the Local's accounting 
firm, Steinberg, Steckler and Picciurro, was also the accountants 
for Local 72 and Joint Council 16. 
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revealed no Executive Board discussion or vote on the matter. 
(Exs. 55—57)25 

During December of the years 1991 and 1993, Local 858 
issued Trerotola a check in the gross amount of $4,027.59 and 
$4,050.44, respectively. (Exs. 67 and 69)26 For both years, these 
checks were approximately egual to the amount of FICA and Medicare 
paid on his behalf out of his salary.27 The notation on the check 
voucher stated "Xmas bonus" in 1991 and in 1993 "Christmas 
gratuity." (Exs. 67 and 69)28 As in the prior years, there was no 

25 In 1988, 1989 and 1990, the other Local 858 Executive Board 
members also received checks in those years with the notation 
"reimb. s. s.", "reimb. s.s. taxes" and "reimb. s.s. tax," 
respectively. For these years, the amount of the checks was 
approximately eguivalent to the FICA withheld from each officer's 
salary. (Exs. 110-112) A schedule of the FICA reimbursement to the 
other officers is annexed as Exhibit 113. 

In a form letter which apparently accompanied the 1988 
checks to the Local 858 officers, Trerotola wrote "Happy Holidays 
and may the enclosed check, which represents a refund of your 1988 
Social Security Taxes, make it even merrier." (Ex. 124) A similar 
form letter accompanied the 1989 and 1990 checks. (Exs. 125-126) 

26 It does not appear that Local 858 paid any FICA 
reimbursement or bonuses to Trerotola or to any other Local 858 
officer in 1992. 

27 In 1991 Local 858 withheld $4,085.10 from Trerotola's 
salary and the gross amount of the check issued to Trerotola was 
$4,027.59. The difference between the withholding and the check 
issued to Trerotola was $57.51. In 1993 Local 858 withheld 
$4,072.46 from Trerotola's salary and the gross amount of the check 
issued to Trerotola was $4,050.44. The difference between the 
withholding and the check issued to Trerotola was $22.02. 

28 In 1991 and 1993, the other Local 858 Executive Board 
members also received checks in those years with the notation "Xmas 
bonus" in 1991 and in 1993 "Christmas gratuity." For these years, 
the amount of the checks was approximately equivalent to the FICA 
withheld from each officer's salary. (Exs. 114 and 115) A 
schedule of the payments to the other officers of Local 858 is 
annexed as Exhibit 113. 



mention in the Local 858 Executive Board minutes of any bonus or 
Christmas gratuity being awarded to Trerotola or to any other 
officer. (Exs. 58 and 60) As a result, the members who had voted 
to pay Trerotola the salary of an OTB General Branch Manager were 
not informed that Trerotola gave himself additional compensation 
beyond his salary each year. In addition, after the charge in 
Vitale. the notation on Trerotola's Local 858 checks changed in an 
apparent effort to conceal that he continued to take money for his 
FICA obligation as he had done in the past, despite his getting a 
tax credit as a refund for the money the Local withheld.29 

By causing Local 858 to pay him through five checks in 
five years, whether the payments represented alleged reimbursement 
for the FICA and Medicare withheld from his Local 858 salary or 
were bonuses, Trerotola took for himself a total of $19,304.19 
beyond his salary. These payments were made without the approval 
of the Local 858 Executive Board or the knowledge of the members 
who had voted to pay Trerotola the equivalent of an OTB General 
Branoh Manager. Thus, Trerotola who was a fiduciary working for 
the Local part-time awarded himself undisclosed and unauthorized 
payments over his salary. In addition, if as the evidence shows, 
these were allegedly FICA and Medicare reimbursements, Trerotola 
did not disclose that at the same time he caused the Local to make 

29 Further reflecting the continuation of the practice of 
reimbursing the officers' FICA obligations, the form letter which 
apparently accompanied the 1991 checks to the Local 858 officers 
contained the same statement regarding the refund of social 
security taxes found in the letters distributed in the years 1988, 
1989 and 1990. In the 1991 letter, Trerotola wrote "Happy Holidays 
and may the enclosed check, which represents a refund of your 1991 
Social Security Taxes, make it even merrier." (Ex. 127) A similar 
form letter accompanied the 1993 checks. (Ex. 128) 
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the payments to him, his share of FICA and Medicare already was 
being reimbursed by other IBT entities and that the Local 
withholding payments were coming back to him as tax credits. Under 
either characterization of the payments, Trerotola embezzled these 
funds from the Local. 

D. JOINT COUNCIL 16 
Joint Council 16 is located at 265 West 14th Street, New 

York City, the same building where Locals 72 and 858 are located. 
(Ex. 1 at 16-17) In 1969, when his father was President of Joint 
Council 16, the Joint Council hired Trerotola as Assistant Office 
Manager. Approximately five or six years later, he was made Office 
Manager. (Ex. 1 at 316)30 He was terminated in June 1993. 

Trerotola testified that paid employees of the Joint 
Council received money equal to their. FICA payments at Christmas 
time. According to him, the payments were Christmas bonuses 
measured by the amount the employee paid into FICA and not FICA 
reimbursement per se. According to Trerotola, by 1991 this policy 
had been in effect for between five and seven years. He did not 
know how the policy originated. (Ex. 1 at 26) 

During December of 1988, 1989 and 1990 the Joint Council 
gave Trerotola checks in the gross amount of $3,331.01, $3,446.12 
and $3,665.85, respectively. (Exs. 71, 73 and 75) The explanatory 
notation on the check voucher for 1988 stated "refund s.s. tax-
1988". The check voucher for 1989 had no notation and the 1990 

30 Trerotola was paid $53,664 by the Joint Council in 1992, 
$55,888.52 in 1991, $53,934.85 in 1990, $51,886.12 in 1989 and 
$50,683.42 in 1988. (Exs. 72, 74, 76, 78 and 80) 
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check voucher contained the notation, "1990 Christmas gratuities." 
(Exs. 71, 73 and 75) The change in notation coincided with the 
Vitale charge. The timing of the change supports an inference that 
it was merely an attempt to disguise the continuation of FICA 
payments. The gross amounts of the checks were similar to the 
amount of the FICA withheld on Trerotola's behalf by Joint Council 
16.31 In December 1991, the Joint Council issued Trerotola a check 
in the gross amount of $3,124.62. The notation on the check 
voucher stated "1991 Christmas gratuities Christmas bonus." (Ex. 
77)32 Trerotola did not receive a bonus check from Joint Council 
16 in 1992 or 1993.33 

31 In 1988 Joint Council 16 withheld $3,781.61 from 
Trerotola's salary and the gross amount of the check issued to 
Trerotola was $3,331.01. The difference between the withholding 
and the check issued to Trerotola was $450.60. In 1989 Joint 
Council 16 withheld $3,604.80 from Trerotola's salary and the gross 
amount of the check issued to Trerotola was $3,446.12. The 
difference between the withholding and the check issued to 
Trerotola was $158.68. In 1990 Joint Council 16 withheld $3,924.45 
from Trerotola's salary and the gross amount of the check issued to 
Trerotola was $3,666.85. The difference between the withholding 
and the check issued to Trerotola was $257.60. Because the IBT had 
paid his FICA, Trerotola would have received all Joint Council 16's 
withholding back as a tax credit. 

32 The amount of FICA withheld from Trerotola's 1991 salary 
from Joint Council 16 was $3,310.80 and the Medicare withheld that 
year was $807.03 for a total of $4,117.83. The gross amount of the 
check issued to Trerotola was $3,124.62. The difference between 
the combined FICA and Medicare withheld from Trerotola's salary and 
the check issued by Joint Council 16 was $993.21. The difference 
between the FICA withheld from Trerotola's salary and the check 
issued to him was $186.18. 

33 Through his counsel, Trerotola contended that the Joint 
Council payments were Christmas gifts measured by FICA. (Ex. 135) 
However, in 1988 the year-end check to Trerotola contained a 
notation reflecting that the payment was reimbursement for the FICA 
withheld from Trerotola's salary. (Ex. 71) Moreover, the notation 
"Christmas gratuities" on the year-end checks was included after 
the Vitale charge. 
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E. EASTERN CONFERENCE 
The Eastern Conference was located in Bethesda, Maryland. 

Trerotola stated that he became the Administrative Assistant to the 
Chairman of the Eastern Conference in 1971. (Ex. 1 at 7-8 & 18)34 

The then Chairman was his father, Joseph Trerotola. Trerotola 
testified that each Christmas all employees of the Eastern 
Conference received a letter from the Chairman saying that each was 
receiving a Christmas gift of their FICA taxes. Trerotola stated 
that he did not know how long this had been the practice in the 
Eastern Conference. (Ex. 1 at 27) 

In the years 1988, 1989, 1990, 1991, 1992 and 1993 the 
Eastern Conference issued checks at the end of each year to 
Trerotola in the gross amount of $2,772.89, $2,996.22, $3,366.12, 
$3,497.13, $3,553.74 and $3,553.74, respectively. (Exs. 81, 83, 
85, 87, 89 and 91) The records of the Eastern Conference record 
these payments as special pay. These checks equalled the amount of 
FICA or FICA and Medicare withheld by the Eastern Conference from 
Trerotola's salary for each of those years. (Exs. 82, 84, 86, 88, 
90 and 92)35 Because in each year either the IBT or another entity 
would have paid Trerotola's FICA, these withholding payments would, 
in essence, have been refunded to him as tax credits by the 
government. 

34 In 1993 Trerotola was paid $46,453.74 by the Eastern 
Conference. (Ex. 92) 

35 Trerotola's counsel contended that the year-end payments by 
the Eastern Conference to Trerotola were Christmas gifts measured 
by FICA. (Ex. 135) However, the Eastern Conference records 
concerning the year-end checks to Trerotola did not refer to 
Christmas gifts, rather the payments were described as "special 
pay." (Exs. 83, 85, 87, 89 and 91) 
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F. THE MULTIPLE FICA REIMBURSEMENTS TO TREROTOLA 
For the years 1988 and 1989 the International fully paid 

Trerotola's FICA obligation. As the law required, Locals 72 and 
858, Joint Council 16 and the Eastern Conference each withheld and 
forwarded to the IRS FICA payments from Trerotola's salary from 
each entity for these years. Since the International fully 
satisfied his FICA obligation, Trerotola would have been reimbursed 
by the IRS through a credit against his personal income taxes owed 
for the amount of FICA the non-International Teamster entities had 
withheld. In 1988, Trerotola would have had excess FICA withheld 
from his salaries in the approximate amount of $13,313.50 and would 
have been entitled to an equal income tax credit as reimbursement. 
(Ex. 99) 

Despite the reimbursement to him through the income tax 
credit from the IRS, in 1988 Trerotola received checks totalling 
$14,031.75 as FICA reimbursement from the four non-International 
Teamster entities. (Ex. 100) Yet, Trerotola had no FICA obligation 
to be reimbursed because of the International's payment on his 
behalf and the tax credit. In fact, for the excess payments 
Trerotola was not out of pocket any money, yet, in essence, he took 
over $14,000 wrongfully as reimbursement for non-existent expenses. 

In the following year, Trerotola received a total of 
$13,792.37 in FICA reimbursement from the four non-International 
Teamster entities. Again, the International had paid fully 
Trerotola's FICA obligation for that year. In 1989, Trerotola 
would have had excess FICA withheld from his salary in the 
approximate amount of $13,810.62 and would have received an income 
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tax credit for that amount. (Ex. 99) Yet again, Trerotola received 
payments in 1989 of $13,792.37 from the four other entities for an 
obligation that the International had met and for which through tax 
credits he would be reimbursed. (Ex. 100) 

In 1990 the IBT paid all but $505.41 of Trerotola's FICA 
obligation. That year Trerotola received a total of $14,869.56 in 
FICA reimbursement from the four non-International Teamster 
entities. When this total figure is adjusted by $505.41, the 
amount of Trerotola's FICA obligation the IBT did not pay that 
year, Trerotola received $14,364.15 as FICA reimbursement above his 
maximum FICA obligation. (Ex. 100) There once again was nothing to 
reimburse. In 1990 Trerotola would have had excess FICA withheld 
from his salary in the amount of $14,634.06 and would have been 
entitled to an income tax credit for that amount. (Ex. 99) He 
would have received over $14,000 from the entities for expenses he 
did not have. 

In 1991 Locals 72 and 858, Joint Council 16 and the 
Eastern Conference paid Trerotola a total of $14,923.23 as 
reimbursement for his FICA and Medicare obligation. Trerotola's 
maximum FICA and Medicare obligation in 1991 was $5,123.30. After 
reimbursement for his maximum FICA and Medicare obligation, the 
evidence showed that these Teamster entities reimbursed Trerotola 
$9,799.93 more than the amount of his maximum FICA and Medicare 
obligation. (Ex. 100) Yet, there was no expense for which 
Trerotola needed to be reimbursed because the excess payments would 
have come back to him as a tax credit. 
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In 1992, Local 72 and the Eastern Conference paid 
Trerotola a total of $8,041.96 as reimbursement for his FICA and 
Medicare obligation. Trerotola's maximum FICA and Medicare 
obligation in 1992 was $5,238.90. After Trerotola's reimbursement 
for his maximum FICA and Medicare obligation, the evidence showed 
that he was reimbursed $2,713.06 more than the amount of his 
maximum FICA and Medicare obligation. (Ex. 100) Again, he would 
have had no expense to reimburse for that amount because the excess 
withholding would have come back to him as a tax credit. 

In 1993, Locals 72 and 858 and the Eastern Conference 
paid Trerotola a total of $12,226.16 as reimbursement for his FICA 
and Medicare obligation. Trerotola's maximum FICA and Medicare 
obligation in 1993 was $5,528.70. After Trerotola's reimbursement 
for his maximum FICA and Medicare obligation, the evidence showed 
that he was reimbursed $6,697.46 over.and above his maximum FICA 
and Medicare obligation. (Ex. 100) Again, he would have had no 
expense to reimburse for that amount because the excess withholding 
would have come back to him as a tax credit. 

In sum, for the years 1988, 1989 and 1990, Trerotola 
received a total of $42,188.27 from Locals 72 and 858, Joint 
Council 16 and the Eastern Conference to reimburse him for his FICA 
obligation that the International had already paid. (Ex. 100)36 

As a result of withholding by the four non-International IBT 
entities, Trerotola also would have received a total income tax 
credit of $41,758.18 for those years. (Ex. 99) Thus, Trerotola 

36 As discussed above, in 1990 the IBT paid all but $505.41 of 
Trerotola's FICA obligation. 
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received over $42,000 as reimbursement for an expense he did not 
have. 

After Trerotola was fired from his International 
position, Trerotola continued to receive multiple reimbursement 
from the other Teamster entities for his FICA and Medicare 
obligations in 1991, 1992 and 1993 despite having no expense to 
reimburse. Trerotola would have received a total income tax credit 
of $29,822.88 for 1991, 1992 and 1993 as reimbursement for excess 
withholding. (Ex. 99)37 After allowing Trerotola to have fully 
paid his FICA and Medicare obligations by an entity once each year, 
the evidence showed that for the years 1991, 1992 and 1993 
Trerotola received from Teamster entities $19,210.45 above his FICA 
and Medicare obligations in addition to the tax credit for excess 
withheld. (Ex. 100) 

37 For the years 1991, 1992 and 1993, Trerotola's total tax 
credit was approximately $10,612.40 greater than the total amount 
he was reimbursed over his maximum FICA and Medicare. In each of 
these years, the four non-International entities each withheld FICA 
and Medicare from Trerotola's salary. However, during these years 
Trerotola did not receive FICA and Medicare reimbursement from each 
entity every year. For example, in 1992, Local 858 and Joint 
Council 16 withheld a total of $7,867.80 from Trerotola's salary. 
However, in that same year Local 858 and Joint Council 16 did not 
reimburse Trerotola for his FICA and Medicare obligation. In 1993, 
the Joint Council withheld $1,573.22 from his salary. However, in 
1993 Joint Council 16 did not reimburse Trerotola for his Medicare 
and FICA obligation. In addition, in 1991 Trerotola received 
$3,124.62 from Joint Council 16 as reimbursement for his FICA and 
Medicare. This figure was $993.21 less than the amount withheld 
from his salary in 1991 by the Joint Council. These figures 
account for $10,434.23 of the $10,612.40 difference between 
Trerotola's total tax credit for 1991, 1992 and 1993 and the amount 
he was reimbursed over his maximum FICA and Medicare in those 
years. (Exs. 79, 99 and 100) 
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IV. THE LAW 
A. BACKGROUND 

For any of the questioned payments to be embezzlement, it 
must be established that Trerotola acted with fraudulent intent to 
deprive an IBT entity of its funds. See. United States v. Welch. 
728 F. 2d 1113, 1118 (8th Cir. 1989) ("under any test, union 
officials violate Section 501(c) only when they possess fraudulent 
intent to deprive the Union of its funds."); Investigations Officer 
v. Caldwell. Ad Dec at 7 (February 9, 1993) (authorizing improper 
payment of officers' legal fees constituted embezzlement); aff'd. 
United States v. IBT. 88 Civ. 4486 (S.D.N.Y. September 2, 1993); 
Investigations Officer v. Vitale. Ad Dec at 9-10 (December 18, 
1990), aff'd. United States v. IBT. 775 F. Supp. 90 (S.D.N.Y. 
1991), aff'd in relevant part. 948 F.2d 1278 (2d Cir. 1991). 
Intent can be inferred from circumstantial evidence. See 
Investigations Officer v. Caldwell. Ad Dec at 7. 

"Authorization from and benefit to the union are the 
controlling lodestars to determine whether a defendant acted with 
the fraudulent intent to deprive the union of its money." United 
States, v. Butler. 954 F.2d 114, 118 (2d Cir. 1992). For the years 
1988, 1989 and most of 1990, the International paid Trerotola's 
FICA. He had no more FICA obligations and would have received a 
full income tax credit for his FICA payments withheld from his 
salaries at his four other Teamster jobs. There was no expense to 
Trerotola for which he was entitled to reimbursement. 
Nevertheless, Trerotola each year from each entity took payments 
intended to be reimbursements for his payment of the FICA tax or 
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his withholding. The International's payment and the other 
entities reimbursements were not disclosed to any of the entities 
from which Trerotola received reimbursement for his satisfied 
obligation and for the withheld monies the government would return 
as tax credits. As a result, for those years, Trerotola received 
an undisclosed windfall of $42,188.27, through, in essence, 
engaging in multiple billing for his satisfied FICA obligation and 
reimbursed withholding. 

In 1991, 1992 and 1993, Trerotola received reimbursement 
for his FICA obligation and withholding from several IBT entities. 
Allowing for one IBT entity to reimburse Trerotola for his FICA 
obligations for those years, Trerotola received $19,210.45 in those 
years beyond his maximum obligation and the tax credits to which be 
was entitled. That amount in essence was embezzled from the 
entities through multiple billing. 

In addition, in any event, Trerotola's specific takings 
of money either for bonuses or as FICA reimbursement from Local 72 
during 1988, 1989 and 1990 and Local 858 in the period from 1988 
through 1993 were also in violation of the IBT Constitution's 
prohibition against embezzlement because of the lack of Executive 
Board approval for such payments to him and the concealment of the 
payments from the members. Moreover, with respect to Local 858, 
Trerotola's intent to embezzle was further shown by the fact that, 
without any disclosure to the members, Trerotola paid himself more 
than the base salary of an OTB General Branch Manager, the standard 
to which the Executive Board and members had set his salary. 
Furthermore, also in connection with the FICA and reimbursed 
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withholding double dipping allegation the lack of local approval 
for the Local's reimbursed FICA payments is strong evidence of 
Trerotola's intent to embezzle.38 

In a prosecution for embezzlement under 29 U.S.C. 
§501(c), the Fourth Circuit stated that: 

It bears repeating that the conversion of 
property that lies at the core of embezzlement 
must be without the permission of the owner, 
and contrary to the wishes of the owner. In 
the context of §501(c), the owner of the 
property is the union itself - its collective 
membership - not individual union officials 
who are not vested with power to dissipate 
union funds in the manner currently before 
the court. . . . The permission of the union 
is lacking if the appropriation or expenditure 
is outside the scope of the fiduciary trust 
placed in the defendant by the union as a 
whole and outside the scope of the powers 
of any superior union official on whose 
permission the defendant has sought to 
rely. 

United States v. Stockton. 788 F. 2d 210, 217 (4th Cir.) 
(emphasis in original), cert, denied. 479 U.S. 840 (1986). 
As a fiduciary, Trerotola had a duty to hold the Locals' money and 
property solely for the benefit of the organization. See. 29 U.S.C. 
§501(a). In these Locals without Bylaws, by awarding himself Local 
money in the absence of Executive Board or membership approval and, 
with respect to Local 858, in apparent violation of an Executive 
Board and membership resolution setting his salary, Trerotola 
breached his fiduciary duties to the Local's members by spending 

38 Moreover, Trerotola did not disclose to either Local's 
membership and Executive Board that, during the years 1988, 1989 
and 1990, the International was fully paying his FICA obligation 
and that Trerotola was entitled to be reimbursed as a tax credit 
against his personal income tax for the excess withholding the 
Local forwarded to the government on his behalf. 
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560 IBT. 780 F.2d 267, 284 (3d Cir. 1985), cert, denied. 106 S. Ct. 
2247 (1986) (union officials are fiduciaries) ; Morrisev v. Curran. 
650 F. 2d 1267, 1274 (2d Cir. 1981) (union official breaches 
fiduciary duty when funds are spent for his benefit and such 
expenditures are manifestly unreasonable as a local officer); 
Farrinoton v. Benjamin. 468 F. Supp. 343, 350-51 (E.D. Mich. 1979). 
Trerotola's violation of his fiduciary duties is additional 
evidence of fraudulent intent to embezzle. See. Investigations 
Officer v. Morris. Ad Dec at 23 (May 22, 1991), aff'd. United 
States v. IBT. 777 F. Supp. 1123 (S.D.N.Y. 1991) aff'd. Docket Nos. 
92-6056, 92-6058, 92-6088, (2d Cir. September 15, 1992). 

Trerotola's fiduciary obligations were also set forth in 
the New York Labor Law ("NY Labor Law") . NY Labor Law Section 
722(3) provides that, "No officer or agent of a labor organization 
shall, directly or indirectly . . . [a]ct in any way which 
subordinates the interests of such labor organization to his own 
pecuniary or personal interests." Pursuant to Section 720 of the 
NY Labor Law, 

it is hereby declared to be the public policy of 
the state of New York that officers and agents 
of a labor organization shall be held to a 
fiduciary obligation in handling the labor 
organization's assets; . . . and that such officers 
and agents shall account fully to the members of 
such labor organization for all assets and financial 
transactions. 

Furthermore, Article XIX, Section 7(b)(3) of the IBT Constitution 
forbids embezzlement or conversion of union funds. 

Contrary to the duties an officer owed under NY Labor Law 
and the IBT Constitution, without any legitimate authorization 
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Trerotola favored his financial interests over the interests of the 
Locals' members when he caused Locals 72 and 858 to make 
undisclosed payments to him, whether as reimbursement for a FICA 
obligation that he did not have, as reimbursement for excess 
withholding for which the government was giving him credit or as 
bonuses for his part-time work apart from any FICA obligation.39 

Moreover, despite the state statutory reguirement, Trerotola never 
accounted to the Locals' members for the payments made to himself 
because neither he nor the board ever disclosed the payments to the 
members. In addition, Trerotola never informed the Local 858 
membership that he awarded himself either FICA reimbursement or 
Christmas bonuses above his salary set by the membership. These 
non-disclosures are evidence of intent to embezzle. 

The Local 72 payments to Trerotola in 1988, 1989 and 1990 
and the Local 858 payments in the period from 1988 through 1993 
were the result of his ex parte actions, unknown to the members and 
never voted on by the Executive Boards of the respective Locals.40 

In addition, Trerotola never disclosed to the Locals' members or 
Executive Boards that the International and other IBT entities were 
fully paying his FICA taxes and any excess withholding was 
reimbursed to him as a tax credit. 

39 According to the Local 72 Executive Board minutes, in 1991, 
1992 and 1993 Christmas gifts were discussed by the Local's 
Executive Board. No board discussions on this matter in any year 
at Local 858 were reflected in the minutes. 

40 In 1991, 1992 and 1993 the Local 72 Executive Board passed 
resolutions authorizing the payment of Christmas gifts as in the 
past. (Exs. 34(D), 35(D) and 36(D)) However, the amount of the 
gifts was not specified and there was no indication in the minutes 
that the officers were the intended recipients of the gifts. (Exs. 
34(D), 35(D) and 36(D)) 
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The Locals' FICA payments or bonuses to Trerotola were 
the result of his unauthorized ex parte actions which because the 
locals were exempt from the disclosure provisions of the Labor-
Management Reporting and Disclosure Act allowed him to conceal such 
payments from the members. This self-dealing and furthering one's 
financial interest at the expense of the Local brings reproach upon 
the IBT and is contrary to Section 722 (3) of the NY Labor Law. 
Moreover, as noted, Trerotola's non-disclosure of the fact that he 
had no FICA obligation and was already being reimbursed by the 
government for his withholding evidenced his intent to embezzle. 

Any claim that, because the other members of the 
Executive Boards received FICA reimbursements, they knew of, and, 
therefore, tacitly approved the FICA payments to Trerotola should 
be rejected. No approval for the payments were reflected in the 
minutes of any Local 858 Executive Board meeting or the minutes of 
any Local 72 Executive Board meeting in the years 1988, 1989 and 
1990.41 Trerotola's salary and salary increases, as noted above, 
were subject to Executive Board approval in both locals. The 
absence in the minutes of board approval for the year-end payments 
established such approval did not occur. Investigations Officer v. 
Ligurotis, Ad Dec. at 18 (October 27, 1992) aff'd. United States v. 
IBT. 814 F. Supp. 1165 (S.D.N.Y. 1993). 

Moreover, Trerotola never disclosed to the Local 72 or 
Local 858 Executive Boards that in 1988, 1989 and most of 1990, the 

41 The notations in the Local 72 minutes for the years 1991, 
1992 and 1993 regarding paying Christmas gifts as in the past did 
not mention the amount of any gifts or to whom the gifts would be 
paid. 
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IBT fully paid his FICA obligation and, as a result, he had no FICA 
obligation and that the excess withholding would be reimbursed as 
tax credits. In the later years, Trerotola did not disclose to 
either Local's Executive Board that other IBT entities were 
reimbursing his FICA obligation and that all excess withholding was 
reimbursed as tax credit. As a result of this non-disclosure, any 
contention that the Executive Board members tacitly approved his 
FICA reimbursement should be rejected. United States v. Butler. 954 
F. 2d 114, 119 (2d Cir. 1992) In Butler, a union officer was 
convicted of embezzlement when he caused the union to pay him a 
fixed expense allowance for his duties as a Trustee of a benefit 
fund without disclosing that the benefit fund was paying his actual 
expenses. Although Executive Board approval for the Local's 
payments had been obtained, the Court held, " [A]n authorization 
obtained without disclosure of [such] material information is 
obviously a nullity."42 

The evidence also reflects that Trerotola embezzled from 
other IBT entities by converting to his own use FICA withholding 
reimbursed to him by Local 72 and Local 858, Joint Council 16, and 

42 Trerotola through counsel suggested that resolutions passed 
by the Local 72 Executive Board on November 15, 1979 and the Local 
858 Executive Board on January 1, 1981 authorizing each Local's 
Secretary Treasurer to "determine the compensation" of all the 
Local's employees gave him the sole authority to award himself FICA 
reimbursement and Christmas bonuses. (Exs. 116 and 117) This 
argument is meritless because such resolutions cannot authorize a 
union officer to breach his fiduciary duties and embezzle union 
funds by making payments to himself for an obligation that has 
already been satisfied. Moreover, in both Locals the members were 
never informed of Trerotola's self-dealing. Furthermore, in Local 
858, Trerotola's payments to himself over the salary of an OTB 
General Branch Manager appear to be contrary to the resolutions of 
the Executive Board and the membership eguating his salary to that 
of an OTB General Branch Manager. 
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the Eastern Conference. Although Trerotola knew that the 
International paid his FICA obligation for 1988 and 1989 and most 
of 1990 and that all excess withholding would be reimbursed to him 
as a tax credit, Trerotola accepted reimbursement for the amounts 
of FICA that were withheld from his salaries at Local 72, Local 
858, Joint Council 16, and the Eastern Conference during these 
years. Trerotola never disclosed to the non-International entities 
that the International paid his FICA obligations during those years 
and that his excess withholding would be reimbursed as tax credits. 

During 1991, 1992, and 1993, Trerotola also received 
multiple reimbursement for FICA and Medicare payments that were 
withheld from his salaries at Local 72, Local 858, Joint Council 
16, and the Eastern Conference during this time. As in the prior 
years, Trerotola did not disclose to any of these entities that 
other IBT entities were reimbursing, him for his FICA obligations 
and that for any excess withholding the government would reimburse 
him through tax credits. 

V. PROPOSED CHARGES 
It is recommended that the following proposed charges be 

filed against Vincent Trerotola. 
While an officer of Local 72 and Local 858 you breached 

your fiduciary duties to the members, embezzled and converted funds 
to your own use and brought reproach upon the IBT in violation of 
Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2) and 
(3) of the IBT Constitution to wit: 
A. 1988 and 1989 
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1. During the years 1988 and 1989, while serving as 
Secretary Treasurer of Local 72, you breached your fiduciary duties 
and embezzled and converted to your own use Local 72 money 
reimbursed to you for FICA contributions when you knew that the 
International was fully paying your FICA obligations and that 
excess withholding would be returned to you by the government as a 
tax credit. You did not disclose to the Local 72 Executive Board 
or to the members that the IBT fully paid your FICA obligations in 
1988 and 1989, that other IBT entities were also reimbursing you 
for your FICA obligations during those years and that all excess 
withholding would be returned as a tax credit. Moreover, the Local 
72 Executive Board and members did not approve the Local's payments 
to you. Nor were such payments disclosed to the members. You 
awarded such payments to yourself without any authority under any 
Bylaws to do so. As a result, in 1988 and 1989 you embezzled 
approximately $7,964.84 from Local 72. 

2. During the years 1988 and 1989, while serving as 
Secretary Treasurer of Local 858, you breached your fiduciary 
duties and embezzled and converted to your own use Local 858 money 
reimbursed to you for FICA contributions when you knew that the 
International was fully paying your FICA obligations and that the 
government would return excess withholding to you as a tax credit. 
You did not disclose to the Local 858 Executive Board or members 
that the IBT fully paid your FICA obligations in 1988 and 1989, 
that other IBT entities were also reimbursing you for your FICA 
obligations during those years and that all excess FICA withholding 
would be returned to you as a tax credit. Moreover, the Local 858 
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Executive Board and members did not approve the Local's payments to 
you. Nor were such payments above your salary disclosed to the 
members. You awarded such payments to yourself without any 
authority under any Bylaws to do so. As a result, in 1988 and 1989 
you embezzled from Local 858 approximately $7,313.04. 

3. During the years 1988 and 1989, while an employee of 
Joint Council 16, you embezzled and converted to your own use Joint 
Council 16 money reimbursed to you for FICA contributions when you 
knew that the International was fully paying your FICA obligations 
and that the government would return excess withholding to you as 
a tax credit. You did not disclose that the IBT, Locals 72 and 858 
and the Eastern Conference were reimbursing your FICA obligations 
during those years and that all excess withholding would be 
returned to you as a tax credit. As a result, in 1988 and 1989 you 
took from Joint Council 16 a total of approximately $6,777.13 as 
reimbursement for FICA obligations and withholding expenses that 
you did not have. 

4. During the years 1988 and 1989, while an employee of 
the Eastern Conference, you embezzled and converted to your own use 
Eastern Conference money reimbursed to you for FICA contributions 
when you knew that the International was fully paying your FICA 
obligations and that the government would reimburse you through a 
tax credit for all excess withholding. You did not disclose that 
the IBT, Locals 72 and 858 and Joint Council 16 were reimbursing 
your FICA obligations during those years and that the government 
would reimburse you for excess withholding through a tax credit. 
As a result, in 1988 and 1989 you took from the Eastern Conference 
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approximately $5,769.11 as reimbursement for FICA obligations and 
withholding expenses that you did not have. 

5. Therefore, during the years 1988 and 1989 you caused 
Local 72, Local 858, Joint Council 16 and the Eastern Conference to 
pay you approximately $27,824.12 as reimbursements for FICA 
obligations and withholding expenses when you knew that the IBT 
paid your full FICA obligation in 1988 and 1989 and the government 
would reimburse you through a tax credit for all excess withheld. 

B. 1990 
1. During 1990, while serving as Secretary Treasurer of 

Local 72, you breached your fiduciary duties and embezzled and 
converted to your own use Local 72 money reimbursed to you for FICA 
contributions when you knew that the International paid all but 
$505 of your FICA obligation that year. You did not disclose to 
the Local 72 Executive Board or members that the IBT paid most of 
your FICA obligations in 1990, that other IBT entities were also 
reimbursing you for your FICA obligations that year or that any 
excess withholding would be returned to you as a tax credit. 
Moreover, the Local 72 Executive Board and members did not approve 
the Local's payments to you nor were such payments disclosed to the 
members. You awarded such payments to yourself without any 
authority under any Bylaws to do so. As a result, in 1990 you 
embezzled approximately $3,924.47 from Local 72. 

2. During 1990, while serving as Secretary Treasurer of 
Local 858, you breached your fiduciary duties and embezzled and 
converted to your own use Local 858 money reimbursed to you for 
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FICA contributions when you knew that the International paid all 
but $505 of your FICA obligation that year. You did not disclose 
to the Local 858 Executive Board or members that the IBT paid most 
of your FICA obligations in 1990, that other IBT entities were also 
reimbursing you for your FICA obligations that year or that any 
excess withholding would be reimbursed to you as a tax credit. 
Moreover, the Local 858 Executive Board and members did not approve 
the Local's payments to you nor were such payments beyond your 
salary disclosed to the members. You awarded such payments to 
yourself without any authority under any Bylaws to do so. As a 
result, in 1990 you embezzled approximately $3,913.12 from Local 
858. 

3. During 1990, while an employee of Joint Council 16, 
you embezzled and converted to your own use Joint Council 16 money 
reimbursed to you for FICA contributions when you knew that the 
International paid all but $505 of your FICA obligation that year. 
You did not disclose that the IBT, Locals 72 and 858 and the 
Eastern Conference were reimbursing your FICA obligations during 
those years and that any excess withholding would be returned to 
you as a tax credit. As a result, in 1990 you took from Joint 
Council 16 a total of approximately $3,665.85 as reimbursement for 
a FICA obligation or a withholding expense that you did not have. 

4. During 1990, while an employee of the Eastern 
Conference, you embezzled and converted to your own use Eastern 
Conference money reimbursed to you for FICA contributions when you 
knew that the International paid most of your FICA obligation that 
year. You did not disclose that the IBT, Locals 72 and 858 and 
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Joint Council 16 were reimbursing your FICA obligations during that 
year and that any excess withholding would be reimbursed to you as 
a tax credit. As a result, in 1990 you took from the Eastern 
Conference a total of approximately $3,366.12 as reimbursement for 
a FICA obligation or a withholding expense that you did not have. 

5. During 1990 you caused Local 72, Local 858, Joint 
Council 16 and the Eastern Conference to pay you a total of 
approximately $14,869.56 as reimbursement for your FICA obligation 
and withholding expenses when you knew that the IBT had paid all 
but $505.41 of your FICA obligation in 1990 and that all excess 
withholding would be reimbursed to you as a tax credit. As result, 
in 1990 you received $14,3 64.15 as reimbursement for a FICA 
obligation you did not have. 

C. 1991 
1. During 1991, while serving as Secretary Treasurer of 

Local 72, you received approximately $4,273.89 from Local 72 to 
reimburse you for your FICA and Medicare obligations. 

2. During 1991, while serving as Secretary Treasurer of 
Local 858, you breached your fiduciary duties and embezzled and 
converted to your own use Local 858 money reimbursed to you for 
FICA and Medicare contributions when you knew that Local 72, Joint 
Council 16 and the Eastern Conference were reimbursing your FICA 
and Medicare obligations that year. You did not disclose to the 
Local 858 Executive Board or to the members that Local 72, Joint 
Council 16 and the Eastern Conference were reimbursing your FICA 
and Medicare obligations and that any excess withholding paid on 
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your behalf would be reimbursed to you as tax credit. Moreover, 
the Local 858 Executive Board and members did not approve the 
Local's payments to you nor were such payments beyond your salary 
disclosed to the members. In 1991, you embezzled approximately 
$4,027.59 from Local 858. 

3. During 1991, while an employee of Joint Council 16, 
you embezzled and converted to your own use Joint Council 16 money 
reimbursed to you for FICA and Medicare contributions when you knew 
that Locals 72 and 858 and the Eastern Conference were reimbursing 
your FICA and Medicare obligations in 1991. You did not disclose 
that Locals 72 and 858 and the Eastern Conference were reimbursing 
your FICA and Medicare obligations in 1991 and that any excess 
withheld payments would be reimbursed to you as a tax credit. In 
1991, you embezzled approximately $3,124.62 from Joint Council 16. 

4. During 1991, while an employee of the Eastern 
Conference, the Eastern Conference reimbursed you $3,497.13 for 
FICA and Medicare contributions when you knew that Locals 72 and 
858 and Joint Council 16 were reimbursing your FICA and Medicare 
obligations in 1991. You did not disclose that Locals 72 and 858 
and Joint Council 16 were reimbursing your FICA and Medicare 
obligations in 1991 and that any excess withholding payment would 
be reimbursed to you as a tax credit. As detailed below in 
paragraph 5, in 1991, you embezzled a portion of the $3,497.13 the 
Eastern Conference paid you to reimburse you for your FICA and 
Medicare obligations. 

5. In 1991, you were given $14,923.23 from Teamster 
entities to reimburse you for your FICA obligations or withholding 
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payments. Your maximum FICA and Medicare obligation that year was 
$5,123.30. The payment of your maximum FICA and Medicare 
obligation was met through the Local 72 payment of $4,273.89 and 
$849.41, which represented a portion of the total Eastern 
Conference reimbursement to you of withholding payments. You did 
not disclose that excess withholding payments would be returned to 
you as tax credits. As a result, in 1991 you embezzled $4,027.59 
from Local 858, $3,124.62 from Joint Council 16 and $2,647.72 from 
the Eastern Conference as FICA and Medicare reimbursement above 
your maximum FICA and Medicare obligation. In 1991, you embezzled 
a total of $9,799.93 as FICA and Medicare reimbursement from Local 
858, Joint Council 16 and the Eastern Conference over your maximum 
FICA and Medicare obligation and the excess withholding payments 
reimbursed to you as tax credits. 

D. 1992 
1. During 1992, while serving as Secretary Treasurer of 

Local 72, the Local paid you $4,488.22 to reimburse you for your 
FICA and Medicare obligations. 

2. During 1992, while an employee of the Eastern 
Conference, the Eastern Conference reimbursed you $3,553.74 for 
your FICA and Medicare contributions when you knew that Local 72 
was reimbursing your FICA and Medicare obligations that year. You 
did not disclose that Local 72 was reimbursing your FICA and 
Medicare obligations that year or that excess withholding would be 
returned to you as a tax credit. As detailed below in paragraph 3, 
in 1992, you embezzled a portion of the $3,553.74 the Eastern 
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E. 1993 
1. During 1993, while serving as Secretary Treasurer of 

Local 72, the Local paid you $4,621.98 to reimburse you for your 
FICA and Medicare obligations. 

2. During 1993, while serving as Secretary Treasurer of 
Local 858, you breached your fiduciary duties and embezzled and 
converted to your own use Local 858 money reimbursed to you for 
FICA contributions when you knew that Local 72 and the Eastern 
Conference were reimbursing your FICA and Medicare obligations. You 
did not disclose to the Local 858 Executive Board or to the members 
that Local 72 and the Eastern Conference were reimbursing your FICA 
and Medicare obligations and that excess withholding payments would 
be returned to you as tax credits. In any event, the Local 858 
Executive Board and members did not approve the Locals' payments to 
you nor were such payments beyond your salary disclosed to the 
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members. In 1993 you embezzled approximately $4,050.44 from 
Local 858. 

3. During 1993, while an employee of the Eastern 
Conference, the Eastern Conference reimbursed you $3,553.74 for 
FICA and Medicare contributions when you knew that Locals 72 and 
858 were reimbursing your FICA and Medicare obligations during that 
year. You did not disclose that Locals 72 and 858 were reimbursing 
your FICA and Medicare obligations that year and that excess 
withholding payments made on your behalf would be returned to you 
as tax credits. As detailed below in paragraph 4, in 1993, you 
embezzled a portion of the $3,553.74 the Eastern Conference paid 
you to reimburse you for your FICA and Medicare obligations. 

4. Your maximum FICA and Medicare obligation in 1993 
was $5,528.70. The payment of your maximum FICA and Medicare 
obligation was met through the Local 72 payment of $4,621.98 and 
$906.72 paid by the Eastern Conference which represented a portion 
of the $3,553.74 total the Eastern Conference paid you in 1993. As 
a result, in 1993 you received $4,050.44 from Local 858 and 
$2,647.02 from the Eastern Conference as FICA and Medicare 
reimbursement above your maximum FICA and Medicare obligation and 
above the tax credit you were entitled to receive for excess 
withholding. Therefore, you embezzled a total of $6,697.46 as FICA 
and Medicare reimbursement from Local 858 and the Eastern 
Conference over your maximum FICA and Medicare obligation. 
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EXHIBITS 

Sworn Testimony of Vincent Trerotola dated April 19, 
1991. 
Sworn Testimony of Vincent Trerotola dated May 4, 1994. 
Schedule and Documents Reflecting FICA and Medicare 
Rates and Maximum Payments Owed for 1988, 1989 and 1990. 
Schedule and Documents Reflecting FICA and Medicare 
Rates and Maximum Payments Owed for 1991, 1992 and 1993. 
Sworn Testimony of Joseph Trerotola dated December 7, 
1990. 
Bylaws of Local 72 
Local 72 Membership Meeting Minutes for 1988. 

a) February 8, 1988, Spring Valley 
b) February 9, 1988, Albany 
c) February 22, 1988, Buffalo 
a) February 23, 1988, Syracuse 
e) April 11, 1988, Spring Valley 
f) April 12, 1988, Albany 
g) April 25, 1988, Buffalo 
h) April 25, 1988, Syracuse 
i) September 19, 1988, Spring Valley 
j) September 22, 1988, Albany 
k) September 26, 1988, Buffalo 
1) September 27, 1988, Syracuse 
m) November 15, 1988, Albany 
n) November 28, 1988, Buffalo 
o) November 29, 1988, Syracuse 

Local 72 Membership Meeting Minutes for 1989 
a) February 6, 1989, Spring Valley 
b) February 7, 1989, Albany 
c) February 13, 1989, Buffalo 
d) February 14, 1989, Syracuse 
e) April 10, 1989, Spring Valley 
f) April 11, 1989, Albany 
g) April 17, 1989, Buffalo 
h) April 18, 1989, Syracuse 
i) September 11, 1989, Spring Valley 
j) September 12, 1989, Albany 
k) September 18, 1989, Buffalo 
1) September 19, 1989, Syracuse 
m) November 13, 1989, Spring Valley 
n) November 14, 1989, Albany 
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o) November 27, 1989, Buffalo 
p) November 28, 1989, Syracuse 

Local 72 Membership Meeting Minutes for 1990. 
a) February 26, 1990, Spring Valley 
b) February 27, 1990, Syracuse 
c) March 5, 1990, Buffalo 
d) March 6, 1990, Albany 
e) April 16, 1990, Spring Valley 
f) April 17, 1990, Buffalo 
g) May 14, 1990, Syracuse 
h) May 15, 1990, Albany 
i) September 17, 1990, Spring Valley 
j) September 18, 1990, Buffalo 
k) September 24, 1990, Syracuse 
1) September 25, 1990, Albany 
m) November 19, 1990, Spring Valley 
n) November 20, 1990, Buffalo 
0) November 24, 1990, Syracuse 
p) November 27, 1990, Albany 

Local 72 Membership Meeting Minutes for 1991. 
a) February 25, 1991, Spring Valley 
b) February 26, 1991, Syracuse 
c) March 4, 1991, Buffalo 
d) March 5, 1991, Albany 
e) April 15, 1991, Spring Valley 
f) April 16, 1991, Syracuse 
g) April 22, 1991, Buffalo 
h) April 23, 1991, Albany 
1) September 23, 1991, Spring Valley 
j) September 24, 1991, Syracuse 
k) September 30, 1991, Buffalo 
1) October 1, 1991, Albany 
m) November 18, 1991, Spring Valley 
n) November 19, 1991, Syracuse 
o) November 25, 1991, Buffalo 
p) November 26, 1991, Albany 

Local 72 Membership Meeting Minutes for 1992. 
a) February 18, 1992, Spring Valley 
b) February 19, 1992, Syracuse 
c) February 24, 1992, Buffalo 
d) February 25, 1992, Albany 
e) May 4, 1992, Spring Valley 
f) May 5, 1992, Syracuse 
g) May 18, 1992, Buffalo 
h) May 19, 1992, Albany 

.1 2 



i) September 2, 1992, Syracuse 
j) September 9, 1992, Spring Valley 
k) September 21, 1992, Buffalo 
1) September 22, 1992, Albany 
m) November 9, 1992, Spring Valley 
n) November 10, 1992, Syracuse 
o) November 23, 1992, Buffalo 
p) November 24, 1992, Albany 

Local 72 Membership Meeting Minutes for 1993 
a) February 10, 
b) February 16, 
c) February 19, 
d) February 23, 
e) May 10, 1993 
f) May 11, 1993 
g) May 13, 1993 
h) May 27, 1993 
i) September 13 
j) September 14 
k) September 27 
1) September 28 
m) November 15, 
n) November 17, 
o) November 22, 
p) November 23, 

1993, Syracuse 
1993, Buffalo 
1993, Spring Valley 
1993, Albany 
Spring Valley 
Syracuse 
Albany 
Buffalo 
1993, Spring Valley 
1993, Syracuse 
1993, Buffalo 
1993, Albany 

1993, Spring Valley 
1993, Syracuse 
1993, Buffalo 
1993, Albany 

Local 72 Accountant's Financial Report for 1988. 
Local 72 Accountant's Financial Report for 1989. 
Local 72 Accountant's Financial Report for 1990. 
Local 72 Accountant's Financial Report for 1991. 
Local 72 Accountant's Financial Report for 1992. 
Local 72 Accountant's Financial Report for 1993 . 
Local 72 Copies of Cancelled Check and Check Voucher 
Payable to Vincent Trerotola for 1988. 
Local 72 W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola for 1988, 
Local 72 Copy of Cancelled Check and Check Voucher 
Payable to Vincent Trerotola for 1989. 
Local 72 W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola for 1989, 
Local 7 2 Copy of Cancelled Check and Check Voucher 
Payable to Vincent Trerotola for 1990. 
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b) April 21, 1992 
c) September 1, 1992 
d) November 5, 1992 

Ex. 36 Local 72 Executive Board Minutes for 1993. 
a) January 21, 1993 
b) April 20, 1993 
c) September 2, 1993 
d) November 4, 19 9 3 

Ex. 37 Sworn Testimony of Leonard Cornecchia. 
Ex. 3 8 Sworn Testimony of Lawrence Ayrault. 
Ex. 39 Sworn Testimony of Susan Girolamo. 
Ex. 40 Sworn Testimony of Daniel Cerio. 
Ex. 41 Sworn Testimony of David Lord. 
Ex. 42 Investigation Officer's Charges Against George Vitale 
Ex. 43 Independent Administrator's Decision on George Vitale 
Ex. 44 Local 858 Membership Meeting Minutes for 1988. 

a) February 16, 1988 b) October 4, 1988 
c) December 6, 1988 

Ex. 45 Local 858 Membership Meeting Minutes for 1989, 
a) February 9, 1989 
b) February 28, 1989 
c) April 24, 1989 
d) May 2, 1989 
e) September 25, 1989 
f) October 3, 1989 
g) November 20, 1989 
h) December 5, 1989 

Ex. 46 Local 858 Membership Meeting Minutes for 1990, 
a) February 13, 1990 
b) March 15, 1990 
c) May 22, 1990 
d) May 29, 1990 
e) September 13, 1990 
f) September 26, 1990 
g) November 5, 1990 
h) November 29, 199 0 
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Ex. 47 Local 858 Membership Meeting Minutes for 1991. 
a) February 13, 1991 
b) March 7, 1991 
c) May 14, 1991 
d) May 23, 1991 
e) September 3, 1991 
f) September 12, 1991 
g) November 4, 1991 
h) November 14, 1991 

Ex. 48 Local 858 Membership Meeting Minutes for 1992. 
a) February 11, 1992 
b) February 20, 1992 
c) April 20, 1992 
d) April 30, 1992 
e) September 1, 1992 
f) November 5, 1992 
g) November 12, 1992 

Ex. 49 Local 858 Membership Meeting Minutes for 1993. 
a) January 19, 1993 
b) January 28, 1993 
c) April 20, 1993 
d) April 29, 1993 
e) September 2, 1993 
f) September 23, 1993 
g) November 5, 1993 
h) November 8, 1993 

Ex. 50 Local 858 Accountant's Financial Report for 1988 
Ex. 51 Local 858 Accountant's Financial Report for 1989 
Ex. 52 Local 858 Accountant's Financial Report for 1990 
Ex. 53 Local 858 Accountant's Financial Report for 1991 
Ex. 54 Local 858 Accountant's Financial Report for 1992 
Ex. 55 Local 858 Executive Board Minutes for 1988. 

a) February 11, 1988 
b) May 5, 1988 
c) September 29, 1988 
d) November 22, 1988 

NYMAIN Doc: 8 2 7 9 8 . 1 
917691-007-010 6 



Doc: 78201.1 
-010 7 



67 Local 858 Copy of Cancelled Check and Check Voucher 
Payable to Vincent Trerotola for 1991. 

68 Local 858 W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola for 1991. 
69 Local 858 Copy of Cancelled Check and Check Voucher 

Payable to Vincent Trerotola for 1993. 
70 Local 858 W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola for 1992 

and 1993. 
71 Joint Council 16 Copy of Cancelled Check and Check 

Voucher Payable to Vincent Trerotola for 1988. 
72 Joint Council 16 W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola for 

1988. 
73 Joint Council 16 Copy of Cancelled Check and Check 

Voucher Payable to Vincent Trerotola for 1989. 
74 Joint Council 16 W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola for 

1989. 
75 Joint Council 16 Copy of Cancelled Check and Check 

Voucher Payable to Vincent Trerotola for 1990. 
76 Joint Council 16 W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola for 

1990. 
77 Joint Council 16 Copy of Cancelled Check and Check 

Voucher Payable to Vincent Trerotola for 1991. 
78 Joint Council 16 W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola for 

1991. 
79 Schedule of Difference Between FICA Reimbursement to 

Vincent Trerotola and Tax Credits for 1991, 1992 and 
1993 . 

0 Joint Council W-2 Statement for 1992. 
1 Eastern Conference Copy of Cancelled Check for Vincent 

Trerotola for 1988. 
2 Eastern Conference W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola 

for 1988. 
3 Eastern Conference Copy of Cancelled Check and Special 

Pay Journal for Vincent Trerotola for 1989. 
4 Eastern Conference W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola 

for 1989. 
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Eastern Conference Copy of Cancelled Check and Special 
Pay Journal for Vincent Trerotola for 1990. 
Eastern Conference W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola 
for 1990. 
Eastern Conference Copy of Cancelled Check and Special 
Pay Journal for Vincent Trerotola for 1991. 
Eastern Conference W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola 
for 1991. 
Eastern Conference Copy of Cancelled Check and Special 
Pay Journal for Vincent Trerotola for 1992. 
Eastern Conference W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola 
for 1992. 
Eastern Conference Copy of Cancelled Check and Special 
Pay Journal for Vincent Trerotola for 1993. 
Eastern Conference W-2 Statement for Vincent Trerotola 
for 1993. 
W-2 Statements Issued by IBT for Vincent Trerotola for 
1988. 
W-2 Statements Issued by IBT for Vincent Trerotola for 
1989. 
W-2 Statements Issued by IBT for Vincent Trerotola for 
1990. 
Excerpts from April 1990 Teamster Magazine. 
Excerpts from February 1991 Teamster Magazine. 
Excerpts from December 1991 Teamster Magazine. 
Schedule of FICA Withheld on Trerotola's Behalf Between 
1988-1993. 
Schedule of FICA Reimbursements Paid to Trerotola Between 
1988-1993. 
1988 FICA Reimbursement Records for Local 72 Executive 
Board Officers Other Than Vincent Trerotola. 

a) "Reimb. S.S." Check Vouchers and Checks for 
December 1988. 

b) Payroll Records 
c) W-2's 
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1989 FICA Reimbursement Records for Local 72 Executive 
Board Officers Other Than Vincent Trerotola. 

a) "Reimb. S.S. Taxes" Check Vouchers and Checks 
for December 1989. 

b) Payroll Records 
c) W-2's 

1990 FICA Reimbursement Records for Local 72 Executive 
Board Officers Other Than Vincent Trerotola. 

a) "Reimb. S.S. Tax" Check Vouchers and Checks 
for December 1990. 

b) Payroll Records 
c) W-2's 

Schedule of FICA Reimbursements to Local 72 Officers 
Other Than Vincent Trerotola for 1988 through 1993. 
1991 FICA Reimbursement Records for Local 72 Executive 
Board Officers Other Than Vincent Trerotola. 

a) "XMAS Bonus" Check Vouchers and Checks 
for December 1991. 

b) Payroll Records 
c) W-2's 

1992 FICA Reimbursement Records for Local 72 Executive 
Board Officers Other Than Vincent Trerotola. 

a) "Christmas Gratuity" Check Vouchers and Checks 
for December 1992. 

b) Payroll Records 
c) W-2's 

1993 FICA Reimbursement Records for Local 72 Executive 
Board Officers Other Than Vincent Trerotola. 

a) "Christmas Gratuity" Check Vouchers and Checks 
for December 1993. 

b) Payroll Records 
c) W-2's 
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Local 858 Executive Board Meeting Minutes for 
September 10, 1987. 
Local 858 General Membership Meeting Minutes for 
September 10, 1987. 
1988 FICA Reimbursement Records for Local 858 Executive 
Board Officers Other Than Vincent Trerotola. 

a) "Reimb. S.S." Check Vouchers and Checks 
for December 1988. 

b) Payroll Records 
c) W-2's 

1989 FICA Reimbursement Records for Local 858 Executive 
Board Officers Other Than Vincent Trerotola. 

a) "Reimb. S.S. Taxes" Check Vouchers and Checks 
for December 1989. 

b) Payroll Records 
c) W-2's 

1990 FICA Reimbursement Records for Local 858 Executive 
Board Officers Other Than Vincent Trerotola. 

a) "Reimb. S.S. Tax" Check Vouchers and Checks 
for December 1990. 

b) Payroll Records 
c) W-2's 

Schedule of FICA Reimbursements to Local 858 Officers 
Other Than Vincent Trerotola for 1988 through 1993. 
1991 FICA Reimbursement Records for Local 858 Executive 
Board Officers Other Than Vincent Trerotola. 

a) "XMAS Bonus" Check Vouchers and Checks 
for December 1991. 

b) Payroll Records 
c) W-2's 
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1993 FICA Reimbursement Records for Local 858 Executive 
Board Officers Other Than Vincent Trerotola. 

a) "Christmas Gratuity" Check Vouchers and Checks 
for December 1993. 

b) Payroll Records 
c) W-2's 

16 Local 72 Executive Board Meeting Minutes for 
November 15, 1979. 

17 Local 858 Executive Board Meeting Minutes for 
January 1, 1981. 

18 December 1988 Local 72 Form Letter from Vincent 
Trerotola. 

19 December 1989 Local 72 Form Letter from Vincent 
Trerotola. 

0 December 1990 Local 72 Form Letter from Vincent 
Trerotola. 

1 December 1991 Local 72 Form Letter from Vincent 
Trerotola. 

2 December 1992 Local 72 Form Letter from Vincent 
Trerotola. 

3 December 1993 Local 72 Form Letter from Vincent 
Trerotola. 

4 December 1988 Local 858 Form Letter from Vincent 
Trerotola. 

5 December 1989 Local 858 Form Letter from Vincent 
Trerotola. 

6 December 1990 Local 858 Form Letter from Vincent 
Trerotola. 

7 December 1991 Local 858 Form Letter from Vincent 
Trerotola. 

8 December 1993 Local 858 Form Letter from Vincent 
Trerotola. 

9 November 10, 1992 Letter from IBT General President 
Approving Local 72 Bylaws. 

0 September 14, 1972 Letter from IBT General Secretary 
Treasurer to Vincent Trerotola Regarding Employment. 
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Ex. 131 Local 72 Executive Board Minutes dated January 31, 1980. 
Ex. 132 Local 72 Executive Board Minutes dated January 27, 1982 . 
Ex. 133 Local 72 Executive Board Minutes dated February 1, 1983. 
EX. 134 Local 72 Executive Board Minutes dated May 9, 1985 • 
Ex. 135 November 18, 1994 Letter from Robert M. Baptiste 

Enclosures. 
with 

Ex. 136 Local 858 Executive Board Minutes dated January 7, 1981. 
Ex. 137 Local 8 58 Executive Board Minutes dated November 3, 1983 . 
EX. 138 Local 858 Executive Board Minutes dated February 6, 1986. 
Ex. 139 Local 858 Executive Board Minutes dated September 10, 

1987. 
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INDEPENDENT REVIEW BOARD 
444 North Capitol St., NW, Suite 528 

Washington, DC 20001 
(202) 434-8080 

Facsimile (202) 434-8084 
Corruption Hotline (800) CALL IRB 

Chief Investigator: Board Members: 
Charles M. Carberry, Esq. 
17 Battery Place, Suite 331 
New York, NY 10004 

Crandall, Pyles & Haviland 
1021 Quarrier Street 

Charleston, WV 25301 
Frederick B. Lacey, Esq. 

Grant Crandall, Esq. 

Administrator: 
John J. Cronin, Jr. October 27, 1995 LeBoeuf, Lamb, Greene & MacRae 

VIA EXPRESS MAIL 
One Riverfront Plaza 

Newark, NJ 07102-5490 
William H. Webster, Esq. 

Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy 
1825 Eye Street, NW, Suite 1100 

General President Ron Carey Washington, DC 20006 
International Brotherhood of Teamsters 
25 Louisiana Avenue, NW 
Washington, DC 20001 
RE: Vincent Trerotola 
Dear Mr. Carey: 

The Independent Review Board has received your September 
22, 1995 letter forwarding your decision on the charges against 
Vincent Trerotola. The matter is affirmed with respect to the 
sanctions. The IRB does not, however, agree with the reasoning 
under which Trerotola was found not to have embezzled funds from 
Joint Council 16 and the Eastern Conference. That officers of 
those entities may have been aware of Trerotola's double dipping is 
not a defense to Trerotola's embezzlement. Rather, such evidence 
indicated that others may have been involved in the embezzlement 
scheme. However, because Trerotola was found liable on the other 
charges, there is no further action necessary. 

Very truly yours 
Members of the 

cc: Judith A. Scott, Esq. 
Administrator, Ethical Practices Committee 

Pursuant to the Consent Order of the United States District Court, S.D.N.Y. 
United States -v- International Brotherhood of Teamsters 88 CIV 4486 (DNE) 



INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF TEAMSTERS 

In the Matter of: 
ARTICLE XIX CHARGES 

-against-
VINCENT TREROTOLA, 

DECISION 

Having reviewed and duly considered the hearing record and the 
findings and recommendations of the Article XIX hearing panel, I 
hereby issue the following decision on the proposed charges against 
Vincent Trerotola referred by the Independent Review Board ("IRB"). 

The proposed IRB charges against Trerotola were referred to a 
three person hearing panel for adjudication. A hearing before the 
panel was held in New York City on March 2, 1995. After review and 
consideration of the evidence, the hearing panel issued its report 
and recommendations on July 29, 1995. A copy of the hearing 
panel's findings and recommendations is appended to this decision. 

I concur with the findings set forth in the hearing panel's 
report and recommendations and I adopt them in their entirety. The 
panel found that Trerotola breached his fiduciary duties and 
embezzled money he caused Locals 72 and 858 to pay him beyond his 
Local Union salaries without disclosure to the Local Union members 
and without approval of the Local Union Executive Boards. In 
addition, the hearing panel found that Trerotola embezzled from 
Locals 72 and 858 money received for reimbursement of his share of 
the FICA tax paid on his salaries when the IBT was paying his full 
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FICA obligations. However, the hearing panel found that Trerotola 
did not breach his fiduciary duties nor embezzle money from Joint 
Council 16 or from the Eastern Conference of Teamsters because he 
was not an officer of either organization and did not participate 
in the formation of the reimbursement policies of those 
organizations or in the authorization of payments. 

In order to make a finding of embezzlement, the evidence 
before the hearing panel had to establish that Trerotola acted with 
fraudulent intent to deprive Locals 72 and 858 of their funds. The 
hearing panel based their finding of fraudulent intent on 
Trerotola's failure to disclose to the respective Local Union 
Executive Boards and the membership of each Local Union that his 
FICA was being paid by the IBT and/or the Eastern Conference and 
Joint Council 16, and his failure to obtain Executive Board and 
membership approval of the additional payments. In addition, the 
panel found that the notation on the additional checks from Locals 
72 and 858 was changed in response to the Independent 
Administrator's decision in the Vitale case that was reported in 
the Teamster magazine. This change was an attempt by Trerotola to 
conceal the continuation of his FICA reimbursement by the Local 
Unions, and the panel found "likely engineered" to avoid "the same 
fate that befell Vitale." (Panel Findings at 16.) 

With respect to the appropriate penalty, the Independent 
Administrator imposed a suspension on Vitale of five years for 
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embezzling Local Union funds by converting to his own use FICA 
contributions paid to him by his Local when his FICA taxes were 
being fully paid by the IBT. This is essentially the same conduct 
that the hearing panel found that Trerotola engaged in. Indeed, 
Vitale was found to have embezzled approximately $10,116 in excess 
FICA payments while the hearing panel concluded that Trerotola 
embezzled over three times that amount ($31,193.50) from Locals 72 
and 858. 

Based on all the testimony and evidence presented to the 
hearing panel and comparing the penalty imposed by the Independent 
Administrator in the Vitale case, I have determined that the 
penalty of one year suspension recommended by the hearing panel is 
too short and that the appropriate penalty for this offense is a 
two year suspension from membership and office. Accordingly, I am 
imposing the following sanctions recommended by the hearing panel 
as modified above: 

(1) Trerotola is suspended* from membership and from 
his positions at Locals 72 and 858 for a period of 
two years; 

(2) During this suspension, Trerotola will draw no 
salary or compensation from any IBT-affiliated 
source; 

*The suspension is reduced by the amount of time Trerotola was 
suspended without pay after the charges were filed and before the 
hearing on the charges was held. 



(3) Trerotola is fined in the amount of $31,193.50 
($11, 889.31 to Local 72 and $19,304.19 to Local 
858), equivalent to the monies he improperly 
received from each Local Union; 

(4) These fines cannot be waived by either Local nor 
can they be set off against any future salary; 

(5) The Locals must show proof that the payments have 
been made and they must be paid before Trerotola 
can resume employment; 

(6) Any future payments, gifts, bonuses or the like to 
Trerotola must be approved in accordance with the 
Local Union Bylaws or by the Executive Board and 
the duly notified general membership of a Local 
without approved Bylaws; 

(7) If any of Trerotola's legal fees have been paid by 
either Local in connection with the investigation 
and hearing of these charges, said amounts shall be 
repaid by Trerotola to the respective Locals as he 
has been found guilty of embezzlement and breaching 
his fiduciary duty to each Local and any payment of 
attorney fees by either Local would be improper and 
would constitute an improper benefit to Trerotola; 

(8) If legal fees have been paid, the amounts should be 
reported by way of valid and credible documentation 
to the General President and General Executive 
Board. 
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My decision in this case shall be effective on the day it is 
received at the Local Union offices. 

Dated: September 22, 1995 
RON CARE 

GENERAL PRESIDENT 


